2008

Mark D. Bergman v. Debbie A. Burke, Dorene R. Basug, and First American Title : Brief of Appellant

Utah Court of Appeals

Statement of Jurisdiction

This appeal is within the general jurisdiction of Utah Code Ann. § 78A-4-103(2)(j) and does not involve any matter or issue within the exclusive jurisdiction of the Utah Supreme Court. After opinion the Utah Supreme Court, ordered this appeal transferred to this Utah Appellate Court by order dated May 2, 2008.

Issues Presented for Review and Standard for Review

1. Did the Trial Court abuse its discretion when it concluded:
 - a. “The Court concludes that there was no meeting of the minds on the essential elements of any agreement between the parties.”
 - b. “The parties did not form an oral contract for the work for Ms. Burke’s home.”

Standard for review Whether a contract implied in fact exists is generally considered a question of fact, and we review a trial court's factual findings under the deferential clearly erroneous standard. *See Ryan v. Dan's Food Stores, Inc.*, 972 P.2d 395, 401 (Utah 1998); *Sorenson v. Kennecott-Utah Copper Corp.*, 873 P.2d 1141, 1144 (Utah Ct. App. 1994). However, we "retain[“] the power to decide whether, as a matter of law, a reasonable [fact finder] could find that an implied contract exists." *Ryan*, 972 P.2d at 401 (quoting *Sanderson v. First Sec. Leasing Co.*, 844 P.2d 303, 306 (Utah 1992)). “As our review of this matter is limited to the trial court's factual findings, which we accept as valid, we will be determining whether an implied-in-fact contract exists as a matter of law in light of those findings.” (quoting *Uhrhahn Construction v. Lamar Hopkins* 2008 UT App 41; 179 P.3d 808.)

2. Did the Trial Court abuse its discretion when it allowed the Defendant to offer as proof of payment to the Plaintiff, alleged cash payments totaling \$2,700.00 without corroborating evidence that suggested such payments were actually made?

Standard for review Evidence of payments is a factual determinations that are reviewed for correctness. Marks v. Marks, 1940 UT, 100 P.2d 207 “Accordingly, we hold that an obligee bears the burden of proving that he or she has fulfilled his or her obligations”

3. Did the Trial Court abuse its discretion when it did not state nor explain the evidentiary foundation to support its factual findings? The findings stated by the Trial Court clearly do not support the Trial Court’s conclusion of law, but rather are in conflict with each other, unclear and are argumentative in nature.

Standard for review “we review a trial court's factual findings under the deferential clearly erroneous standard.” *See Ryan v. Dan's Food Stores, Inc.*, 972 P.2d 395, 401 (Utah 1998); Sorenson v. Kennecott-Utah Copper Corp., 873 P.2d 1141, 1144 (Utah Ct. App. 1994). (quoting Uhrhahn Construction v. Lamar Hopkins 2008 UT App 41; 179 P.3d 808.)

4. Was the Trial Court’s award of damages proper given the lack of explicit factual findings regarding such award?

Standard for review "[An] award of damages is a factual determination that we review for clear error." Saleh v. Farmers Ins. Exch., 2006 UT 20, P 29, 133 P.3d 428. (quoting Uhrhahn Construction v. Lamar Hopkins 2008 UT App 41; 179 P.3d 808)

5. Did the Trial Court disregard the evidence that the Defendant's Agent had authorization to approve or disapprove / increase or decrease the scope of repair and renovation work that the Plaintiff was performing on the Defendant's property? As the party charged by the Defendant with authorizing work on the real property at issue, the Defendant is liable to the Plaintiff for work performed on such property at the Defendant's Agent's request.

Standard for review Damages that the Defendant owed the Plaintiff are a factual determination that is reviewed for correctness. (quoting Uhrhahn Construction v. Lamar Hopkins 2008 UT App 41;179 P.3d 808.) "Interpretation of the terms of a contract is a question of law. Thus, we accord the trial court's conclusions regarding the contract no deference and review them for correctness." Nova Cas. Co. v. Able Constr., 1999 UT 69, P6, 983 P.2d 575, (quoting Advanced Restoration v. Priskos, et al., 2005 UT App 505, 539 Ut. Adv. Rep. 66)

Statement of the Case

This case came for trial on the Plaintiff's single cause of action on the foreclosure of a mechanic's lien recorded upon the Defendant's real property, pursuant to which the Plaintiff claimed to have a legal interest in the Defendant's real property and the home thereon. Such mechanic's lien secured the debt of \$28,675 due to the Plaintiff by the Defendant, in consideration of the work performed by the Plaintiff and expenses incurred in connection therewith pursuant to a verbal agreement between the parties.

On or about August 12, 2004, the Defendant filed an Answer to the Plaintiff's Complaint, and included a Counterclaim against the Plaintiff. In such Answer and Counterclaim, the Defendant alleged that the Plaintiff's Complaint was founded upon a wrongful lien pursuant to Utah Code Annotated 38-9-1 Et Seq., and prayed the Trial Court order the mechanic's lien be found to be a wrongful lien and requested that the Defendant be awarded treble damages and attorney fees.

On or about August 4, 2005, the Defendant moved for Summary Judgment claiming that the mechanic's lien contained material misstatements and the Plaintiff's mailing of the lien documents to the Defendant did not disclose the homeowner's rights found under Utah Code Ann. § 38-1-7(2)(h) of the Utah

mechanic's lien statutes. Furthermore, the Defendant prayed the Trial Court order the mechanic's lien be found defective and invalid and the Defendant awarded cost and attorney fees. On or about December 15, 2005, the Trial Court heard oral arguments, and on February 24, 2006, entered the order denying the Defendant's motion on the record.

On or about November 13 and 14, 2007, the case came to trial before the Honorable Parley R. Baldwin. After a two-day bench trial, Judge Baldwin requested the parties submit closing arguments in writing, due to lack of available time of the Court. On or about January 16, 2008, the Trial Court entered its final Judgment and Order into the record.

Such Judgment and Order found in favor of the Plaintiff and awarded the amount of \$7,500. The Trial Court found that the amount of \$5,220 previously paid by the Defendant to the Plaintiff shall be deducted from the awarded \$7,500, leaving a balance of \$2,280 due by the Defendant to the Plaintiff.

The Trial Court awarded the Plaintiff \$2,280 and concluded that there was not a meeting of the minds between the parties, that the parties did not have an oral contract and based upon the supervision of the Defendant's Agent's Utah State Contractor's license, the Plaintiff was not required to be so licensed. The Trial Court also found that each party shall bear their own attorney's fees and cost.

STATEMENT OF FACTS

Rule 52(a), Utah Rules of Civil Procedure, requires that “ ‘[i]n all actions tried upon the facts without a jury or with an advisory jury, the court shall find the facts specially and state separately its conclusions of law thereon’ ” (quoting Utah R. Civ. P. 52(a)).

As the case at hand was tried upon the facts and without a jury, the Plaintiff is arguing the case on appeal upon its merits and challenging the Trial Court’s factual findings and conclusions of law as framed. The Trial Court’s conclusions do not appear to be supported by the evidence and such are legally insufficient, are ambiguous, and do not appear to be based upon law. Furthermore, the Plaintiff believes that the findings and conclusions are contradictory and contain argumentative positions relating to the actions and behavior of the parties.

It is the Plaintiff’s position that neither the Plaintiff nor a reasonable fact finder could justify or support the Trial Court’s findings and conclusions as framed, and therefore fit within the exception to the marshalling requirements detailed within;

Rule 24(a)(9), Utah Rules of Appellate Procedure, Briefs

. . . A party challenging a fact finding must first marshal all the record evidence that supports the challenged finding.

“The only rare exception to the marshaling requirements is if the appellant can show that the trial court’s findings as framed are legally insufficient, i.e., the findings do not provide enough detail to demonstrate the evidentiary basis for the decision thereby allowing for meaningful review,” (quoting, Campbell v. Campbell, 896 P.2d 635, 638 (Utah Ct. App. 1995)) (citation omitted).

In the case at hand the Trial Court’s findings and conclusions are simple cursory statements, which speak more about the parties rather than what is the law and how it governs the actions of the parties. As the Trial Court does not refer to what evidence, facts or law that the Trial Court reviewed to base its decision, the findings and conclusions are insufficient to allow for a meaningful review. Therefore, marshaling the evidence in this case would at best be founded on speculation.

ADEQUACY OF THE FINDINGS

“To successfully challenge the findings, the appellant must ordinarily demonstrate they are clearly erroneous. To make such a showing, appellant is required to marshal all the evidence supporting the findings and then demonstrate that the findings are not supported by legally sufficient evidence” (quoting Campbell v. Campbell, 896 P.2d 635, 638 (Utah Ct. App. 1995)). Also, see the statement in, Williamson v. Williamson 1999 UT APP 219, 983 P.2d 1103 We

agree with Ms. Williamson that she "need not engage in a futile marshalling exercise [because she] can demonstrate the findings, as framed by the court, are legally insufficient." Campbell v. Campbell, 896 P.2d 635, 638 (Utah Ct. App. 1995).

Due to the lack of detail or references to law or evidence within the Trial Court's findings and conclusions, the Trial Court has left the Plaintiff with no-way to marshal the evidence to support the Trial Court's decision and such prevents a meaningful review.

Nonetheless, the legally insufficiencies of findings in this case, show why the conclusions of law are contrary to the facts and cannot be relied upon. Detailed below are the findings that contain contradictory statements as per the evidence and facts they reveal;

The Court states in paragraph:

#2, "After a review of all the evidence, the Court finds that there was no meeting of the minds between the parties."

#3, "The parties did not have a written contract."

#5, "Mr. Isbell is a licensed contractor and was at Ms. Burke's home almost on a weekly basis to review the work performed by the Plaintiff."

#6, “Mr. Isbell provided the adequate supervision over the Plaintiff for the work performed by the Plaintiff.”

#8, “The Court finds that the total value of the labor and materials provided to Ms. Burke, for which she is liable was \$7,500.00.”

#9, “Ms. Burke paid the Plaintiff almost on a weekly basis for the work and materials he provided to Ms. Burke’s home.”

After the Trial Court concluded there was no contract between the parties and no meetings of the minds, the Trial Court must have abused its discretion when it found in favor of the Plaintiff and awarded the Plaintiff a total of \$7,500. One position contradicts the other.

In connection with the above, the Plaintiff claims the conclusions to be captious, ambiguous, and contradictory in facts. If the Trial Court found no contract and no meetings of the minds, then it cannot find the Defendant liable for anything, as there is no enforceable agreement.

Yet, the Plaintiff contends that there was an enforceable agreement between the parties, which the Trial Court must have found, because the Trial Court concluded that the Defendant was liable for a portion of the debt claimed by the Plaintiff.

The Plaintiff's main argument with the Trial Court's conclusions, and that the Trial Court must have found evidence and facts that an agreement existed between the parties, only chose not to enforce it.

**Nevertheless, if the findings are true,
then how could the Trial Court also find that,
the Defendant still owed the Plaintiff?**

Granting the Trial Court its discretion and considering that the findings are true, the award granted the Plaintiff by the Trial Court is wrong and should be returned to the Defendant. Because, if the Trial Court could not find an agreement or a meeting of the minds between the parties, then neither of the parties were obligated to other and the alleged agreement is not enforceable. Better known as an illusory promise.

Nonetheless, the Trial Court does not explain why or how it found that the Defendant still owed the Plaintiff, hence such facts do not allow for a meaningful review. The Trial Court's conclusions are legally insufficient and cannot be relied upon. Therefore, one can only speculate as to what the Trial Court found to issue its decision.

Based on the foregoing facts and because the presiding Judge, the Honorable Parley R. Baldwin has announced that he will retire from the bench on December

31, 2008, the Plaintiff respectfully requests the judgment be vacated and remand for an evidentiary hearing before a new Judge, would be appropriate. At such time, the parties can point to all evidence presented at trial that may go to the findings and conclusions issue. This would further judicial efficiency because otherwise, a new judge would have the onerous task of pouring through the entire transcript, as well as all trial exhibits.

Presented below are the entire conclusions of the Trial Court. It is the Plaintiff's position that the contradictory conclusions are self-evident, and in fact contrary to law. Therefore, it is the Plaintiff's position that the Appellate Court has little choice but to vacate the judgment and remand the case for a new evidentiary hearing.

CONCLUSIONS OF LAW

The Trial Court concluded in paragraph:

#14. The court concludes that there was no meeting of the minds on the essential elements of any agreement between the parties.

#15. The parties did not form an oral contract for the work for Ms. Burke's home.

If paragraph #14 is true, combined with the statement in paragraph #15, then the Trial Court committed a clear error in awarding anything to the Plaintiff (SEE:

FISHER v. CRESTAR BANK, N.A. 2002 UT App 144,). "If a contract is ambiguous, courts may look to extrinsic evidence to clarify the parties' intent." The trial court, after hearing the testimony, found that "even if Sine unreasonably believed that the March 24 letter was an independent obligation of the Bank, there was **no meeting of the minds** between Sine and the Bank," as to the meaning of the letter, and therefore concluded that "as such, it is unenforceable." (Emphasis added).

The Trial Court's conclusions at this point are clear and leave no room for any further interpretation, and based upon other Utah Case Law the Plaintiff's case should have been dismissed right here. Nonetheless, the Trial Court felt compelled to go on, but by doing such the Trial Court created a legal quagmire that weigh heavy upon parties seeking justice. Another Utah case that reflects the Court's standard practice when finding that there is no meeting of the minds is as follows; SEE: Nielsen v. Gold's Gym, 2003 UT 37, P6 78 P.3d 600 "It is fundamental that a meeting of the minds on the integral features of an agreement is essential to the formation of a contract. An agreement cannot be enforced if its terms are indefinite." Richard Barton Enters. v. Tsern, 928 P.2d 368, 373 (Utah 1996) [*7] (citing Pingree v. Cont'l Group of Utah, Inc., 558 P.2d 1317, 1321 (Utah 1976)); Valcarce v. Bitters, 12 Utah 2d 61, 63, 362 P.2d 427, 428 (1961)) (additional

citations omitted); *see also* Candland v. Oldroyd, 67 Utah 605, 608, 248 P. 1101, 1102 (1926) ("So long as there is any uncertainty or indefiniteness, or future negotiations or considerations to be had between the parties, there is not a completed contract. In fact, there is no contract at all.").

Only, with the case at hand, the Trial Court did not say that the agreement seemed ambiguous, or even that the terms within the agreement were misunderstood or uncertain. Therefore, the Trial Court's findings and conclusions are insufficient and cannot to be relied upon.