2008

# Mark D. Bergman v. Debbie A. Burke, Dorene R. Basug, First American Title : Brief of Appellee

Utah Court of Appeals

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

## **SUMMARY OF THE ARGUMENTS**

Mr. Bergman's asserts in his appellate brief that the district court's finding of fact are not supported by the evidence adduced at trial. He claims that the trial court failed to provide adequate support for the findings of fact and conclusions of law in this matter. Further, he alleges that Ms. Burke failed to provide written evidence of some of the payments to him for work performed on her real property. Finally, Mr. Bergman wants the appellate court to revisit his claims for compensation from Ms. Burke by arguing that her husband, Mr. Isbell, was her agent.

Mr. Bergman did not have a transcript of the trial prepared. He filed a document stating that no transcript was necessary. He does not cite to the Records at all in his brief. He leaves this Court to its own devices to determine where, if any at all, the errors he claims the trial court made are located in the Record. He argues that he is exempt from marshaling the evidence in support of his claims. Mr. Bergman postulates the district court's errors in it drafting it findings of fact are so plain and pervasive that they are "legally insufficient" and relieves him from the burden of meeting he clearly erroneous standard.

The issues raised by Mr. Bergman in his brief are so inadequately briefed and the overall analysis of these issues is so lacking as to shift the burden of research and argument to the this Court. Without citations to the Record, lack of a transcript, little if any citations to appropriate legal authority, and a failure to marshal the evidence makes responding to Mr. Bergman's appellate brief a challenge at best. Mr. Bergman was not happy with the outcome of the trial. He fired his attorney and decided to plead his case before the district court and now before this Court. Mr. Bergman asks this Court to determine that the trial court failed to support its findings

of fact without providing any support for his conclusions. The Court should deny Mr. Bergman's appeal for a lack of following the appropriate Appellate Rules and his failure to properly, as set forth in the Utah case law, marshal the evidence.

Ms. Burke submitted a motion for summary judgment to the district court concerning the validity of Mr. Bergman's Lien. His Lien was defective on its face because he failed to include specific required elements on his Lien. Those elements include his telephone number, the first date of work performed on Ms. Burke's real property, and the last date of work was performed. As a result of Mr. Bergman's failure to comply with the Utah Statute governing mechanics' liens, the district court should have granted Ms. Burke's summary judgment motion. This would have concluded the case at that time and would not have necessitated her continued defense to Mr. Bergman's foreclosure action.

Whether Ms. Burke was successful with her defense against Mr. Bergman's foreclosure action at the summary judgment level or at the trial level, she is entitled to an award of costs, which includes a reasonable attorneys' fee. Ms. Burke was the prevailing party at trial.

Ms. Burke successfully defended against the Mr. Bergman's mechanics' lien foreclosure action. Mr. Bergman was awarded only \$2,280.00 out of the \$28,675.00 he claimed he was owed. In other words, he was only awarded approximately 8% of his claim. On the other hand, Ms. Burke received \$26,395.00 of the \$28,675.00 or 92% of the amount claimed by Mr. Bergman.

Ms. Burke should have been awarded a reasonable attorneys' fees at the trial court level and should be entitled to an award of attorneys' fees on appeal. Ms. Burke requests that this Court grant her appeals and remand this matter to the district court for a determination of the

reasonable attorneys' fees and costs. She also asked this Court to grant her fees and costs on appeal pursuant to the Appellate Rule.

## ARGUMENT

Mr. Bergman did not order a transcript of the trial. He has chosen to make his agreements without providing this Court with the trial testimony of any of the witnesses. Mr. Bergman did not make one citation to the record at all in his brief. He failed to marshal any evidence in support of his claims that the district court abused its discretion. Rather, Mr. Bergman presents his argument that he did not need to marshal any evidence in support of his claims, because the district court's findings are "legally insufficient." *See Campbell v. Campbell*, 896 P.2d 635, 638 (Utah Ct. App. 1995). Mr. Bergman continues to ignore the Record.

### **A. Standard for a Reviewing a District Court's Findings of Fact.**

"Findings of fact, whether based on **oral or documentary evidence**, shall not be set aside unless clearly erroneous, and due regard shall be given to the opportunity of the trial court to judge the credibility of the witnesses." Utah Rules Civil Procedures 52(a) (emphasis added). A party challenging a fact finding must first marshal all record evidence that supports the challenged finding *United Park City Mines v. Stichting Mayflower Mountain Fonds*, 2006 UT 35, P 24, 140 P.3d 1200; *see also* Utah R. App. P. 24(a)(9). We dismiss arguments that do not meet these requirements. *See State v. Sloan*, 2003 UT App 170, P 13, 72 P.3d 138 (citing *Smith v. Smith*, 1999 UT App 370, P 8, 995 P.2d 14). The assertions that factual findings of a court are not supported by the evidence are evaluated under the clearly erroneous standard. *See 438 Main St. v. Easy Heat, Inc.*, 2004 UT 72, P68, 99 P.3d 801 (noting that clearly erroneous findings are "against the clear weight of the evidence"). "A finding is "clearly erroneous" when although there is evidence to support it, the reviewing court on the entire evidence is left with the definite

and firm conviction that a mistake has been committed.” *State v. Walker*, 743 P.2d 191, 193 (Utah 1987) (quoting *United States v. United States Gypsum Co.*, 333 U.S. 364, 395, 68 S. Ct. 525, 92 L. Ed. 746 (1948)). To successfully challenge such findings, “an appellant must first marshal all the evidence supporting the finding[s] and then demonstrate that the evidence is legally insufficient to support the findings even in viewing it in the light most favorable to the court below.” *Reid v. Mutual of Omaha Ins. Co.*, 776 P.2d 896, 899 (Utah 1989); *see also* Utah Rules of Appellate Procedures 24(a)(9).

To successfully challenge that ultimate finding, an appellant should marshal all of the remaining evidence supporting it and then demonstrated why that evidence “is legally insufficient to support [it] even when viewing it in a light most favorable to the court below.” *Chen v. Stewart*, 2004 UT 82, P76, 100 P.3d 1177 (internal quotations omitted).

To appropriately marshal evidence, parties must “provide a precisely focused summary of all the evidence supporting the findings they challenge.” *Id.* at P77. “This summary must correlate all particular items of evidence with the challenged findings and then convince us that the trial court erred in the assessment of that evidence to its findings.” *Id.* Indeed, parties challenging factual findings must “fully embrace the adversary's position” and play “devil's advocate.” *Harding v. Bell*, 2002 UT 108, P19, 57 P.3d 1093 (internal quotations omitted). The process of marshaling evidence is fundamentally different from that of presenting the evidence at trial. The challenging party must temporarily remove its own prejudices and fully embrace the adversary's position; he or she must play the devil's advocate. In so doing, appellants must present the evidence in a light most favorable to the trial court and not attempt to construe the evidence in a light favorable to their case. Appellants cannot merely present carefully selected



facts and excerpts from the record in support of their position. Nor can they simply restate or review evidence that points to an alternate finding or a finding contrary to the trial court's finding of fact. *Chen v. Stewart*, 2004 UT 82, P 78, 100 P.3d 1177 (citations and internal quotation marks omitted).

The argument shall contain the contentions and reasons of the appellant with respect to the issues presented, including the grounds for reviewing any issue not preserved in the trial court, with citations to the authorities, statutes, and parts of the record relied on. Particularly, “[b]riefs must contain reasoned analysis based upon relevant legal authority. An issue is inadequately briefed when the overall analysis of the issue is so lacking as to shift the burden of research and argument to the reviewing court.” *State v. Sloan*, 2003 UT App 170, P 13, 72 P.3d 138 (citing *Smith v. Smith*, 1999 UT App 370, P 8, 995 P.2d 14).

**B. Did the Trial Court abuse its discretion when it concluded:**

- a. “The Court that there was no meeting of the minds on the essential elements of any agreement between the parties.”
- b. “The parties did not form an oral contract for the work for Ms. Burke’s home.

Mr. Bergman brought a single cause of action in his Complaint. *See* “Statement of the Case at page 11 of Mr. Bergman’s Brief dated November 5, 2008. That single cause of action was to “foreclosure of a mechanics’ lien recorded upon the Defendant’s real property.” *Id.* Mr. Bergman did not include a cause of action for breach of any type of contract in his Complaint. Mr. Bergman was suing in order to be fully compensated for the value of the work he performed on Ms. Burke’s real property. Simply put, he was seeking money. He was not trying to establish a right to get paid through a contract, but through Utah’s Mechanics’ Lien Statute.

The district court listened to the testimony from all of the witnesses and reviewed all of the trial exhibits from both parties. Both parties submitted written closing arguments for the court's review. The trial was conducted in mid November 2007, and the court announced its decision in mid January 2008. The Judgment specifically stated that the court:

Having reviewed and considered the parties' witnesses, the evidence presented at the trial, considered the written closing arguments of the parties, reviewing the file and good cause appearing, the Court enters its following Findings of Fact, Conclusions of Law, and Judgment. **Record at page 374.** Clearly, the district court reviewed all of the evidence, oral and/or documentary, and considered all of the legal arguments of counsel prior to issuing its Ruling. The Judgment is only a reflection of the court's pronounced ruling. Mr. Bergman was not privy to the conference call when the court issued its ruling. The district court findings of facts are "legally sufficient" for review on a single cause of action trial.

The marshaling rule requires appellant, Mr. Bergman to "marshal all the evidence in favor of the facts as found by the trial court and then demonstrate that even viewing the evidence in a light most favorable to the court below, the evidence is insufficient to support the findings of fact." *Save Our Schools v. Board of Educ.*, 2005 UT 55, P 10, 122 P.3d 611 (quoting *Chen v. Stewart*, 2004 UT 82, P 76, 100 P.3d 1177). Because Mr. Bergman has failed to marshal the evidence, the appellate court should "assume the evidence supports the trial court's findings." *See Chen*, 2004 UT 82, P 80, 100 P.3d 1177.

Mr. Bergman offers no meaningful analysis and only cursory legal citation in his brief. Rather than meeting the marshaling rule's high burden, Mr. Bergman attempts to simply present previously found to be insufficient. *Chen*, 2004 UT 82 at P78. It does not matter that Mr.

Bergman's claim is that no evidence supports the findings he challenges. *See Wilson Supply, Inc.*, 2002 UT 94 at P22. Even assuming the truth of those claims, the fact remains that Mr. Bergman's challenge is ultimately to the district court's findings and he marshals none of the facts he alleges evidence support his claims. Mr. Bergman completely fails to fulfill the "rigorous and strict" marshaling requirement, *see Chen v. Stewart*, 2004 UT 82, P 79. For those findings that Mr. Bergman *does* directly challenge, he essentially reargues the evidence and asserts that the findings are incorrect because the evidence supporting them is "self-serving" and "controverted." But such recharacterizations of the evidence are ineffectual on appeal because it is the trial court's role to assess credibility and to assign weight to conflicting evidence. *See 438 Main St. v. Easy Heat, Inc.*, 2004 UT 72, P 75, 99 P.3d 801 ("When reviewing a district court's findings of fact on appeal, we do not undertake an independent assessment of the evidence presented during the course of trial and reach our own separate findings with respect to that evidence. Rather, we endeavor only to evaluate whether the court's findings are so lacking in support that they are against the clear weight of the evidence."). Thus, because Mr. Bergman makes no real attempt to properly marshal the evidence, this Court should accept all the trial court's findings. *See Chen*, 2004 UT 82, P 80. Further, the Court should refuse to address any of Bergman's legal arguments that are entirely dependent on a version of the facts that is contrary to the trial court's findings.

Mr. Bergman's arguments consist of assertions that the action on the part of Ms. Burke, her counsel, and the district court was improper. Such an argument does not comply with appellate briefing rules. *See Utah R. App. P. 24(a)(9)* (requiring an appellant's argument to "contain the contentions and reasons of the appellant with respect to the issues presented"); *West Jordan City v. Goodman*, 2006 UT 27, P 29, 135 P.3d 874 ("The appellate court is not a

depository in which the appealing party may dump the burden of argument and research. An adequately briefed argument must provide meaningful legal analysis. A brief must go beyond providing conclusory statements and fully identify, analyze, and cite its legal arguments. This analysis requires not just bald citation to authority but development of that authority and reasoned analysis based on that authority." (footnotes and internal quotation marks omitted)). This Court has warned that such noncompliance may have serious consequences because we have the discretion to strike the noncompliant arguments and "assess attorney fees against the offending lawyer." Utah Rules of Appellate Procedures 24(k).

Thus, this Court should decline to address the merits of Mr. Bergman's arguments under these circumstances. *See State v. Shepherd*, 1999 UT App 305, P 27, 989 P.2d 503 (declining to consider the merits of issues briefed where defendant's brief failed to cite relevant legal authority or provide any meaningful analysis), *see also State v. Bobo*, 803 P.2d 1268, 1272 (Utah Ct. App. 1990) (explaining proper method for presenting state constitutional claims); *State v. Johnson*, 771 P.2d 326, 328 (Utah Ct. App. 1989) (rejecting nominal allusions to state constitutional guarantees). The district court did not abuse its discretion in formulating and issuing its findings of facts. This court should deny Mr. Bergman's appeal.

**C. Did the Trial Court abuse its discretion when it allowed the Defendant to offer as proof of payment to the Plaintiff, alleged cash payments totaling \$2,700.00 without corroborating evidence that suggested such payments were actually made?**

In his brief, Mr. Bergman provided a copy of Ms. Burke's Exhibit D14, which was received by the district court on November 13, 2007. Mr. Bergman's Brief dated November 5, 2008, at page 27. During the trial, Ms. Burke, Mr. Isbell, and Josh Bergman all testified to one

or more of the entries on that list of payment from Ms. Burke to Mr. Bergman. Each of the entries on Exhibit D14 were discussed at the trial. Mr. Bergman's counsel did cross examine Ms. Burke's witnesses in relation to their testimony concerning the payments to Mr. Bergman. D14 clearly identifies the cash payments to Mr. Bergman. Specifically, Ms. Burke and her witnesses testified to the cash payments to Mr. Bergman. There was adequate testimony at trial to explain and prove the existence of the payments to Mr. Bergman for the district court to find and draft its Findings of Fact. The trial court accepted the testimony and trial exhibits offered by Ms. Burke in making its Ruling.

Mr. Bergman makes unsupported claims and statements. He claims that since Ms. Burke did not provide documentary exhibits, i.e. a cancelled check, for the cash payments she is not entitled to the benefit of those payments. Ms. Burke provided oral testimony to support those payments instead. He asserts that the district court should not accept that testimony as proof of those payments. Since the matter was tried to the district court as a bench trial, the trial district court was and is the trier of fact. Mr. Bergman has failed to demonstrate that the trial courts finding are "clearly erroneous." Mr. Bergman did not marshal the evidence to support the allegations in his brief.

The records and exhibits provided by Mr. Bergman at trial do not meet the standard he would now like to impose on Ms. Burke. That is, that the only way the trial court could accept and find that cash payments were made is with some sort of documentary evidence and the oral testimony of three witnesses would be inadequate. Nevertheless, Mr. Bergman failed to provide the same level documentation for his own claims. His hourly claim for working 1,200 hours was an estimate, not contemporaneous records for the claimed work. However, he now seeks to have

this Court rule that he is entitled to more compensation for his work by not allowing Ms. Burke to claim her cash payments to Mr. Bergman. The trial court heard all of the oral evidence presented by all of the witnesses, including Mr. Bergman and Ms. Burke's witnesses. Simply put, the district court did not believe the testimony of Mr. Bergman and his witnesses.

Without citations to the Record and/or a trial transcript, it is impossible for Mr. Bergman to marshal the evidence necessary to meet the clearly erroneous standard required by Mr. Bergman's appeal. In order to challenge a court's factual findings an appellant must marshal the evidence on appeal. In *Groberg v. Housing Opportunities, Inc.*, 2003 UT App 67, the Court of Appeals held that:

"In reviewing a factual determination, we defer to the decision of the trial court . . . ." *Nu-Trend Elec. Inc., v. Deseret Fed. Sav. & Loan Ass'n Inc.*, 786 P.2d 1369, 1371 (Utah Ct. App. 1990). Furthermore, [t]o successfully challenge a trial court's findings of fact on appeal, [a]n appellant must marshal the evidence in support of the findings and then demonstrate that despite this evidence, the trial court's findings are so lacking in support as to be against the clear weight of the evidence, and thus making them clearly erroneous. *Valcarce v. Fitzgerald*, 961 P.2d 305, 312 (Utah 1998) (quotations and citations omitted).

*Id.* at ¶ 16. Mr. Bergman has not met his burden to show that the district court's findings are so lacking in support as to be against the clear weight of the evidence, and thus making them clearly erroneous.

Further, Mr. Bergman failed to provide this Court with any citations to the Record. He did not provide the Court with a transcript of the trial testimony he claims failed to prove the existence of the cash payments. Once again Mr. Bergman failed to marshal the evidence to support his claims that the cash payments were not made. Mr. Bergman made no real attempt to properly marshal the evidence, thus this Court should accept all the district trial court's factual findings. Therefore, this Court should deny Mr. Bergman's appeal.

**D. Did the Trial Court abuse its discretion when it did not state nor explain the evidentiary foundation to support its factual findings? The findings stated by the Trial Court clearly do not support the Trial Court’s conclusion of law, but rather are in conflict with each other, unclear and are argumentative in nature.**

Once again, Mr. Bergman has failed to marshal any evidence to give any credence to his arguments. The marshaling rule requires appellant, Mr. Bergman to ““marshal all the evidence in favor of the facts as found by the trial court and then demonstrate that even viewing the evidence in a light most favorable to the court below, the evidence is insufficient to support the findings of fact.”” *Save Our Schools v. Board of Educ.*, 2005 UT 55, P 10, 122 P.3d 611 (quoting *Chen v. Stewart*, 2004 UT 82, P 76, 100 P.3d 1177).

Despite the plain language of the Judgment, Mr. Bergman claims that the district court failed to support its findings of fact. The Judgment specifically states:

the trial, considered the written closing arguments of the parties, reviewing the file and good cause appearing, the Court enters its following Findings of Fact, Conclusions of Law, and Judgment.

....

2. After a review of all of the evidence, the Court finds that there was no meeting of the minds between the parties.

**Record at pages 374 - 75.** In other words, the district court reviewed virtually the whole file and all of the trial testimony and exhibits. The court could not have been more thorough. It is plain that the district court reviewed all of the evidence, oral and/or documentary, and consider all of the legal arguments of counsel prior to issuing its Ruling. The Judgment is just a reflection of the district court’s announced Ruling. Mr. Bergman was not privy to the conference call when the district court issued its Ruling, which may explain his confusion about what the court did.

Mr. Bergman has even failed to point out the “conflict” between the Findings of Fact and/or the Conclusions of Law issued by the trial court. Further, he has not demonstrated how

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